SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 25, 2016
9:09 a.m

9:09:45 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Randal | Hof f beck, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue; John
Ti chot sky, Chief Econom st, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue.

SUMVARY

APRESENTATI ON: 2015 FALL FORECAST AND STANDARD and POCR
REPORT

9:10: 18 AM

RANDALL HOFFBECK, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE,
di scussed the PowerPoint presentation, "Alaska Departnent
of Revenue: Fall 2015 Revenue Forecast Presentation,” (copy
on file).

9:11: 20 AM

Co-Chair Kelly recognized forner Speaker of the House John
Harris in the room



Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck discussed Slide 3, "Structure of
Revenue FY 2013, FY 2014, FY 2015." The slide contained a
pie chart for each respective year. Each chart detailed the
change in restricted and unrestricted general fund dollars
from FY 13 to FY 15. He relayed that it was unlikely that
unrestricted revenues, as currently defined, would be a 50
percent ever again. He said that the recent revenue sources
book would reflect a breakdown of restricted revenues that
were avail able for appropriation; investnent earnings that
had not historically been part of the annual appropriation,
but were avail able for appropriation.

9:12:46 AM

Conmmi ssi oner Hof fbeck discussed Slide 5, "Mthods: Wiat Do
We Forecast at DOR?"

Mostly Petrol eum and Non-petrol eum Revenue

We directly forecast Petrol eum Revenue
o the largest conponent, accounting for 75%of
state unrestricted revenue in FY 2015
o “Petrol eum Revenue” includes severance taxes,
royalties, corporate incone tax, and all other
revenue fromoil conpanies
 We directly forecast Non-petrol eum Revenue

e W use someone else's forecast for | nvest ment
Revenue

* We use the Federal Revenue authorized for spending
as the forecast
o It is typically 20% 30% nore than actually gets
spent .

 DOR conpiles all different revenue streans and
conpiles themin the annual Revenue Sources Book

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck noted that noving forward, oil and
gas tax, revenue, and royalties would be considered at a
smal | er percentage of the state's overall revenue.

9:14:16 AM

Conmmi ssi oner Hoffbeck npved to Slide 6, "al Revenue
Forecasting, ":

Three Factors for Production Tax Revenue Forecast

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/25/16 9:09 A M



REVENUE = (Net value * Tax Rate) - Credits taken
against liabilityl
Net val ue = (Price*Production) —Costs
1.Price
2. Production
3. Cost s
1. Capital expenditures
2. Qperating expenditures
3. Transportation cost

1DOR al so forecasts refundable credits, but these are
paid out of the CGeneral Fund and do not appear in the
revenue forecast.

9:14:50 AM

Conmmi ssi oner Hof fbeck npved to Slide 7, "Fal | 2015
Hi ghlights,":

* Input changes relative to the 2015 Spring Forecast.
o Gl price forecasts have been reduced for al
years in the forecast.
= Long term prices now expected to settle
around $50 -$70 real.
o Capital expendi t ures forecasts have been
reduced for all years in the forecast.
o G| production forecasts have been reduced for
all years in the forecast.
o Correspondingly, unrestricted revenues have
been revi sed downwar d.

e Revenue inpacts largely due to change in oil price
assunpti ons.
» Lease expenditure (or investnent) in the oil fields

expected to decline, which wll |ead to Iless
expected “new’ production in the future.
o Many projects have been deferred wuntil oi

prices inprove.

9:15: 29 AM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche wondered how the departnent defined the
term"long ternm on slide 7.

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck replied that for the purposes of the
forecast, "long ternt indicated nore than three years out.
He furthered that because of the I|lowered price point,
projects had been deferred until oil prices inproved, which

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/25/16 9:09 A M



neant | ess |ease expenditure and nore downward pressure on
new production until investnents were nade.

9:16: 25 AM

JOHN TI CHOTSKY, CH EF ECONOM ST, TAX DI VISION, DEPARTMENT
OF REVENUE, discussed Slide 9, "Production History and
Forecast," noting that there was a plateau expected in the
declining oil production.

9:17: 27 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 10, "ANS Production Forecast
Comparison." The slide offered a conparison of fall 2015
and spring 2015, which were nearly identical, and primarily
driven by price.

9:17:38 AM

M. Tichotsky nmoved to Slide 11, "ANS GO Production
Forecast,":

* Vol unes from Devel oped Reserves (Currently
Pr oduci ng) :

o Gl from wells that are in production and

fol |l ow ng typi cal reservoir engi neeri ng

optim zation wi thout major investnent.
o These volunes are from projects already in
pl ace and thus remain unadjusted for risk.

* Vol unes from Undevel oped Reserves and
addi tional /accel erat ed Devel oped Reserves:
o Gl fromprojects that will add increnental oi
to existing fields or wll bring new fields

i nto production.

o Must have senior nmanagenent approval and be
al l ocated funds in the conpany’s budget.

o These volunes are risk-adjusted for comercia
uncertainty.

* Vol unes from Conti ngent Resources:

o Gl from projects that are likely to occur in
the future, but have not net the requirenents
of the previous category.

o Gl reserves nust be known and recovery is
technically possible with current technol ogy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/25/16 9:09 A M



o These volumes are nore strongly risk-adjusted
due to the commercial wuncertainty and other
risks.

DR+ UDR + CR = Unrisked I nvestnment Case

9:18: 22 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 12, "ANS Production Forecast,"
which contained a line graph illustrating Al aska North
Sl ope production forecasted through 2025. He relayed that
it was possible that the decline could continue, but the
departnment expected the actual line to land between the
hi ghest and | owest investnent cases.

9:19: 30 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked to revisit Slide 10. He wondered
how nmuch of the production increase that was indicated on
the graph was unrisked and adj usted expected beyond 2017.

M. Tichotsky replied that the uptick in the spring shown
on the graph had been due to a higher price environnent. He
said that in a lower price environnent, short-term pull back
woul d be seen. He furthered that oil conpani es had provided
fairly accurate projections five years out, but their view
dropped off beyond the five year mark. He said that the
department was doing the production forecast because it
needed to produce a revenue forecast. The further out in
the future the projections, the less certainty in the
predictions.

9:22: 05 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche appreciated the conservative nature of
the departnment's predictions for price and production
| evel s.

9:22:27 AM
M . Ti chotsky discussed Slide 14, "ANS  Production
Forecast,” which <contained a stacked area graph that

forecasted ANS production through 2025.

9:23:44 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/25/16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky discussed Slide 16, "Alaska North Sl ope Crude
West Coast Price,” which contained a line chart detailing
the fall of oil prices between January 2014 and January
2016.

9:24: 23 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 17, "Alaska North Slope West
Coast, West Texas Internediate and Brent Crude Prices 2009
t hrough 2016", which contained a line chart. He comented
that and comented that the state had not seen prices so
| ow since 2001 - 2002. He added that the three oil price
mar kers: West Texas Internediate (W), Al aska North Slope
Crude (ANS), and Brent have less than a dollar difference
in price between them He explained that physi cal
i npedi ments had contributed to the | ow prices.

9:26: 03 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 18, "Key G| Price Drivers":

* Supply & Denmand
* There are two main factors to nonitor
o dobal spare capacity, since it is both a
reflection of supply and demand. In other
words, the Organization of Petroleum Exporting
Countries (OPEC) spare capacity (flipping a
switch) is key.
o Cost of devel opi ng new oil supply.
e Current Events
o Wak gl obal demand.
o Cost of supplying the mnarginal barrel has
decreased dramatically.
0o OPEC (Saudi Arabia) maintains market share and
accepts | ower prices.
o Cost of supply has fallen as new sources have
been defined and devel oped.
= Ol shale is a prine exanple.

9: 26: 55 AM

M. Tichotsky discussed Slide 19, "OPEC s view of supply
and demand..," which contained a conbo chart, based on
guestions the conmttee had asked in 2015. He relayed that
OPEC predicted an uptick in the requirenment for OPEC crude.

9:27:37 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky noved to slide 20, "It's about spare
capacity..”, which contained a line chart and a bar graph.
The line chart detailed global production and consunption
of crude oil and other Iliquids from 2011 to 2017, in
mllion barrels per day. The bar graph illustrated the
inplied stock change from 2011 to 2017, in mllion barrels
per day.

9: 28: 49 AM

Co-Chair Kelly asked for further clarification on the
sl i de.

M. Tichotsky explained that previously, the supply of oil
that could conme online quickly represented 30 percent of
the total demand. This nade it easy to control the price.
Today, the marginal supply was thin, which would result in
price volatility into the future. He pointed out to the
commttee that when the green bars on the bar graph dropped
bel ow zero, which neant that demand outpaced supply,
driving up the price.

M. Tichotsky stated that i f production  surpassed
consunption, the price of oil would fall. He noted that the
bottom graph then reflected how nuch extra oil was on the
mar ket .

9:30: 45 AM
Senator Dunl eavy asked whether the inpact of a weak, or
strong, Anmerican dollar on the price of oil, would be
di scussed.

M. Tichotsky replied that the inpact of a strong or weak
U S. dollar was considered, but was not an overriding
factor. He said that the need to track currency had been
non-existent. He reiterated that forecasts were difficult
when using volatile oil prices.

9:32: 33 AM

M. Tichotsky stated that while the price of oil could go
down further, the investnent dropped off for narginal oi
suppliers, curtailing supply.

9:33: 35 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



Senat or Bi shop thought Slide 20 was inportant. He surm sed
that the 25 to 30 percent oversupply in the md-1980s was
now less than 2 percent. He offered that a slight
di sruption could cause a price shift because there was no
spare capacity.

M. Tichotsky concurred.

9:34: 36 AM

Senator O son queried the tinme |ag between production and
consunption that affected the overall price per barrel.

M. Tichotsky responded that the tinme lag was a noving
nunber. He stressed that people were trying to nail down a
nunber  wor | dwi de. He stated that the current price
envi ronnent was unpecendent ed.

9: 35: 33 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon offered her insight on the actions of
Saudi Arabia in the global oil market. She added that Iran
was flooding the narket with an additional mllion barrels
per day.

M. Tichotsky confirmed that the nunber was 500,000 barrels
per day.

9:36: 23 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to Slide 19. She and wondered
whet her the state was confident in OPEC s projections. She
gueried whether those projections offered the state a
realistic picture of the future oil market.

M. Tichotsky replied that a Harvard econom st was slated
to testify before the commttee on another subject in the
future, and would speak nore in-depth on Saudi Arabia. He
felt that Saudi Arabia had failed to accurately predict the
current price of oil. He noted that Slide 19 reflected the
view of Saudi Arabia with standard econom cs; when energy
prices were |ow, demand increased. He nentioned that "gas
guzzling" vehicles, and the vehicle heavy popul ations of
China and India had contributed to high demand. He
explained that the increase in supply was due to
br eakt hroughs in technol ogy over the |ast decade.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/25/16 9:09 A M



9:38:43 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether China was advancing at
the sane pace in coal usage, rather than considering the
switch to a cleaner fuel, such as natural gas. She
understood that a large portion of the market consisted of
avi ation fuel

M. Tichotsky explained that electricity markets had relied
on renewables for over a decade. He said that the demand
for coal-fired electricity in the U S had decreased and
had been replaced by cheap, natural gas. He said that Asia
had been reluctant to nove into nuclear energy. Germany had
rejected nuclear energy, but bought coal-fired electricity
from Poland. He relayed that the U S. currently produced
| ess carbon em ssions than Europe. He lanented that there
wer e uni ntended consequences related to the various sources
of energy that could not be predicted. He said that
aviation fuel was an inportant conponent, but autonobile
transportation fuel drove the market.

9:42:19 AM

Co-Chair Kelly wondered whether changes in the nmarket had
been anticipated when the Iran sanctions were |ifted.

M. Tichotsky referred back to Slide 20, which showed how
500, 000 barrels per day af fected producti on and
consunpti on.

Co-Chair Kelly said that he had heard that Iran could
produce 2 mllion barrels per day, and higher.

M. Tichotsky said that he could not speak to those
nunbers.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked on the growh of India and its |ack
of a mddle-class. He asked whether | was anticipated that
India would play a large part in drawing the world out of
recession.

M. Tichotsky expressed that he was nore informed regarding
Chi nese markets, but nused that if India could develop a
m ddl e-class, that drove autonobiles, that consunption
coul d spur econom c grow h.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/25/16 9:09 A M



Co-Chair Kelly asked about the portion of demand taken up
by the petrochem cal industry.

M. Tichotsky replied that he did not know.

9: 45: 03 AM

Vi ce- Chair M cci che bel i eved t hat al | comodi ties
experienced volatility as one point or another; he asserted
that market instability always |urked under the surface. He
pondered whether instability was always tenporary in a
commodity price.

M. Tichotsky countered that stability was also tenporary.
He said that the narkets were constantly shifting between
stability and instability. He relayed that short-term
equi libriuns could be created, but concurrently there were
| ong-term changes. He rel at ed t hat traditional,
conventional oil had decreased, but due to technol ogy,
hydrocarbons had been recognized as a resource. He said
that nore hydrocarbons were accessible at economc prices.
He shared that hydrocarbons were a great way to store and
nove energy, which was why they renmined prevalent in spite
of em ssions issues.

9:48: 04 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asserted that when thinking about
filling in the fiscal gap, short-term ideas could suffice.
He guessed that there would be a period of relative
stability at sone time in the future. He contended that
savings had to be conserved for as |long as possible, but at
sonme point the price of oil would rise.

M. Tichotsky thought that the volatility and instability
were the two things that could be counted on. He said that
t he bigger econom c problem for Alaska was that the state's
budgetary and revenue system revolved around oil price
volatility.

9:50: 03 AM

Senator Hoffman referred to the recent climate change
summt in Paris where many countries had signed off on an
agreenent to curb the wuse of fossil fuels, which he
understood |acked any real ability to effect change. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



wondered whether the agreement would affect the price
structure.

M. Tichotsky shared that when Gernmany rejected nuclear
power, Europe used and produced electricity with nore
carbon em ssions. He added that the U 'S. had reduced its
reliance on coal by switching to natural gas, which
produced |ess greenhouse gasses. He reiterated that
uni ntended consequences and advancenents in technol ogy
woul d define the future rules of the how the oil markets
wor ked gl obal Iy,

9:52: 02 AM

Senat or Dunleavy lanmented that, in his brief tinme at the
table, oil price projections had never been accurate. He
wondered whether the state should budget well under the
predictions. He understood that the FY17 budget was
forecast at $56 per barrel.

Commi ssi oner Hoffbeck clarified that the forecast was $50,
$56 had been used for FY16. He stated that DOR had al ways
endeavored to be conservative in its predictions.

M. Tichotsky stated the he was wild about a probabilistic
view of the world, one with ranges of possibilities. He
said that with commodity prices, the ranges were broad;
realistic nunbers could range anywhere from $15 per barre
to $120 per barrel. He relayed that determnistic prices
were only good if there was certainty about what would
happen next in the market, if there was uncertainty it
woul d be better to understand the range of possibilities
and be nostly right, than to be exactly wong. He concl uded
that if the view was too determnistic, disallowng the
ranges to inform a worldview, the result would be exactly
wrong and not nostly right.

9:56: 51 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 22, "Consensus view that the
distribution is wde,” and comented that the graphs
reflected that crude oil prices remained relatively |ow

t hrough 2016 and 2017.

9:57: 50 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 24, "'What if the oil price
is.. for the remainder of FY 2016," he offered that the
settling price could be anywhere from the md-fifties to
the thirties.

9: 58: 38 AM

M. Tichotsky discussed slide 25, "H storical ANS West
Coast FY GO1I Price Bands: Annual Average and Oficia
SPRI NG 2015 Forecast".

9:59:17 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 28, "COWAR SON-SPRI NG 2015
VS. FALL 2015 FORECASTS," noting that oil prices were
currently 25 percent lower than the earlier forecast. The
ANS oil production was 4 percent |ower, and had been driven
by anticipated prices. The projected revenue forecast
between the spring and the fall showed at negative $605
mllion. The nunbers for FY 17 had been driven by price.

9:59: 54 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 29, "CONTRI BUTORS OF CHANGE I N
FY2016 REVENUE FORECAST," and said that the state was
getting over 500,000 barrels per day - into the next
several years.

10: 00: 39 AM

M. Tichotsky discussed Slide 30, "CONTRIBUTORS OF CHANGE
I N FY2017 REVENUE FORECAST," stating that it was based on a
belief that the price would recover. He asserted that the
price would drive the system increased production was not
anti ci pat ed.

10: 01: 05 AM

M. Tichotsky noved to Slide 31, "NORTH SLOPE CAPITAL
EXPENDI TURE FORECAST CHANGE'. He related that |ess capita
expenditures were expected due to oil prices. He said this
woul d have a positive effect on revenues because capital
expenditures are deductible. He relayed that the | ess noney
that was spent on capital expenditures in the present neant
| ess opportunity for production in the future. He noted
that operating expenditures between the spring and fal
reflected the [ ower price environment.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



10: 02: 03 AM

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck discussed Slide 34, "Net Tax Credits
vs. Production Tax," explaining that it was an updated
version of a slide showmn to the conmttee the previous
year .

10: 02: 37 AM

Conmmi ssi oner Hof f beck di scussed Slide 35, "Unrestricted G|
Revenue* and Tax Credits", which showed the net tax credits

versus unrestricted oil revenue and included petroleum
property tax, petroleum CIT, production tax, oil and gas
hazardous release, oil and gas conservations, rents, and
royalties.

10: 03: 03 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested a chart with the information
on Slide 35 fromthe previous ten years.

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck agreed to provide the information.

10: 03: 29 AM

M. Tichotsky addressed Slide 37, "Fall 2015 Total Revenue
Forecast,"” explaining that both investnent and petroleum
revenues were volatile. He noted that federal funding was a
st eady source of revenue.

10: 04: 44 AM

M. Tichotsky addressed Slide 38, "FY 2017 Ceneral Fund
Unrestricted Revenue, with Price Sensitivity," and pointed
out how the curve increased exponentially with the price of
oi | above $80 bbl.

10: 05: 54 AM

M. Tichotsky discussed Slide 39, "Total Revenue Forecast -
FY 2015 & 2016," which he described as a traditional way of
| ooking at the state's forecasted revenue. He noted that
unrestricted revue was projected to fall between $1 billion
to $2 billion.

10: 06: 44 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky discussed Slide 40, "A New View of Revenue".
The slide reflected a categorization of what was subject to
appropriation. He pointed out to the commttee that the
nunber was consi derably | arger than on the previous slide.

10: 07: 28 AM
M . Ti chot sky di scussed Slide 41, " Cener al Fund
Unrestricted Revenues: Non-petroleunmt. He relayed that

there was a lot of volatility in mning license tax. He
rem nded the commttee the revenue related to oil eclipsed
al | non-petrol eum sources of revenue.

10: 08: 33 AM

Cormmi ssi oner Hoffbeck commented that the information on
Slide 41 did not assune any changes within the current tax
structure.

10: 08: 47 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asserted that, given the current oi
prices, the state was in better shape under SB 21 than they
woul d have been under Alaska’s Clear and Equitable Share
(ACES). He asked whether M. Tichotsky had been involved as
an econom st in the evaluation of the effects of changing
tax credits.

M. Tichotsky responded that his group produced the data
for all of the discussions on tax, as well as looking into
i nvestnment revenues. He said that the detailed el enents of
t hose discussions would be reveal ed over the course of the
| egislative session. He said that he had been focused on
the sovereign wealth portion of the analysis and that other
econonmsts in his group had been working diligently
conducting analysis and running nodels. He said that the
current situation was a perfect storm all the financial
issues were extrenely pressing, and huge anmounts of data
had been collected and boiled down in order to be presented
as sinply as possible to the commttee.

10: 11: 35 AM

Senat or Hof f man wondered whether M. Tichotsky was worKking
to justify CGovernor WAl ker's revenue neasures proposals.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky replied that Governor Wil ker's proposals and
| egi sl ation was very data-driven and relied very heavily on
the information produced by econom c research.

10: 12: 20 AM

Senator Dunl eavy asked whether there had been an RFP put
forward contracting a study to exam ne the sovereign wealth
concept .

Conmi ssioner Hoffbeck replied in the affirmative. He said
he was waiting for the appropriate hearing to present the
dat a.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether M. Tichotsky's work was
simlar to the requested study.

M. Tichotsky specified that the MacKenzie Goup had
eval uated the nodeling that had been done by the departnent
and had offered criticismand feedback on their work.

10: 13: 24 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether M. Tichotsky could share
success or failure rates on the nodels that had been run
for Governor Wl ker's soverei gn wealth plan.

Conmmi ssioner Hoffbeck interjected that after the $3.3
billion draw proposed in the governor's nodel, the chances
of the ERA going to zero within a 24 year period of tine
would be at 30 percent. He explained that the four-year
review period had been enbedded in the bill so that the
draw could be nodified before the account reached zero. He
asserted that the four-year review brought the failure rate
to near zero.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether the failure rate had been
based on a 6.5 percent rate of return for all funds.

Comm ssi oner Hof fbeck thought that the percentage was 6.9;
the MacKinzie Goup had felt that 6.5 was not an adequate
assunpti on.

10: 15: 23 AM

Senator Hoffman asked whether the nunbers assuned that
inflation proofing would continue

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



M. Tichotsky replied that inflation proofing was inplicit
in the sovereign wealth fund worked - a set anpunt woul d be
drawn, which would allow the permanent fund to retain its
value in real terns. He said that the concept of having a
sustai nable draw neant that inflation had been taken into
account .

10: 16: 11 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understood that there would not be a
deposit made that would be specifically described as
i nflation proofing.

M. Tichotsky clarified that taking the $3.3 billion draw
accounted for inflation, but a specific anmount of noney
woul d not be set aside specifically to inflation proof.

10: 16: 48 AM

Senator Bishop understood that inflation proofing was
al ready enbedded in the formul a.

M. Tichotsky replied in the affirmative.

10:17: 35 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked whether the departnent could
provi de the previous year's rate of return on the permanent
fund.

Comm ssi oner Hof f beck thought it was in the 3 or 4 percent
range.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon said that the current legislation had a
specific appropriation anount for inflation proofing. She
stated that because of the asset allocation already in
place the state was inflation proofing by investnent
strat egy.

10: 19: 25 AM

Commi ssioner Hoffbeck referred to the report conpleted by
St andar d and Poor' s Rat i ngs Servi ces, " Al aska;
Appropriations; General bligation; Mral Obligation” (copy
on file). He relayed that the report had conme out after the
rating service downgraded the stew from an AAA to an AA
plus. He highlighted that Mwody's and Fitch had yet to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



follow suit, resulting in a split rating for the state. He
said that the ratings were netrics driven and that the
state had generally fallen outside of those netrics. He
said that the state should have received |ower ratings in
the past, but had not due to its substantial savings. He
explained that the state had experienced several years of
low oil prices, which had resulted in the use of sone of
the savings; use of the savings had been expected, but the
concern of Standard and Poor was the state's financial
stability going forward in the volatile oil market. He
relayed that low oil prices, and not the level of state
debt, had driven the downgrade. He stated that the rating
service had noted the state's substantial savings account
could provide opportunity to turn the problem around. He
related that Standard and Poor had pointed specifically to
the current legislative session as the time to bring the
negative outlook to stable. He stressed that Standard and
Poor had left the door open for the state to solidify its
rating, but they had nmade it clear that action had to be
taken to close the deficit during the current |egislative
sessi on.

10: 22: 05 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked whether the comm ssioner had
i nfluenced the |anguage used in the report. She felt that
all of the language targeted the |egislature, which she
found curious. She understood that the legislature was in
charge of appropriation, but she had never seen a rating
agency target the legislature while supporting the
Governor's proposal.

Conmi ssi oner Hof fbeck was unable to provide insight on the
| anguage used in the docunent. He relayed that the person
who wote the report had participated in a budget workshop
in Grdwood, AK during the summer of 2015. He said that
Standard and Poor had been nore engaged, and had asked nore
guestions, than the other rating agenci es.

10: 23: 49 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that the conm ssioner had been
in discussions with credit raters prior to the TransCanada
buyout proposal. She asked whether policy discussions had
occurred during that tine.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



Comm ssioner Hoffbeck replied that he had discussed the
state's fiscal situation with Standard and Poor. He said
that the agency had asked what mght happen wth the
state's econony, and he had replied that the expectation
was that the legislature would act on the fiscal situation.
He contended that no information had been introduced to the
agency concerning the legislature. He stressed that he
sinply answered their questions.

Co-Chair MacKinnon found it interesting that the rating
agency had not contacted the |egislature before preparing
their sunmary.

Comm ssioner Hoffbeck agreed. He revealed that when the
agency had indicated the action that they would be taking,
the adm nistration pushed back with the assertion that the
| egislature had nmade the appropriate cuts and were worKking
to bridge the fiscal gap. He said that the adm nistration
was surprised by the action taken by the rating agency.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wunderstood that there were questions
from the rating agency pertaining to the fall revenue
forecast update and whether it was too high. She asked
whether the comm ssioner was in talks wth the ratings
agency about the revenue forecast and offered assurances
that it was not overly optimstic.

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck replied in the affirmative. He added
that the ratings agencies worked against influencing
policy, which was why they did not conmunicate directly
with the legislature. He reiterated that the adm nistration
had been surprised by sonme of the details wthin the
sunmary.

10: 28: 18 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the legislature could
invite the author of the summary to testify before the
comm ttee.

Comm ssi oner Hof f beck responded that he could not speak for
t he agency. He offered to broach the subject.

Co-Chair MacKinnon felt that the agency had neasured the

| egi sl ature wthout talking to them while pushing
|l egislators to support policies that had yet to be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



di scussed. She asserted that the |anguage in the sumary
reflected unfairly on the |egislature.

10: 29: 20 AM

Vice-Chair M cciche echoed Co-Chair McKi nnon's sentinents.
He felt that the downgrade had been unnecessarily
preenptive and the report "strangely unconventional." he
quoted Page 5 of the summary:

In our view, Alaska has sufficient financial resources
to stabilize general fund operations if it can
assenble the necessary political wll to adopt the
necessary changes. W expect this wll require asking
residents to accept reduced state spending, higher
taxes, and, if it is to use investnent earnings, a
reconstituted -- and |l ower -- dividend paynent.

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered whether the departnment had
| ooked into whether the sunmary was an unconventionally
political docunent.

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck replied that he had not anal yzed the
docunent in that manner.

10: 31: 03 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked whether the policy statenents
included in the sunmary coul d be consi dered unconventi onal .

Comm ssi oner Hoffbeck replied that the report contained a
better understanding of Alaska's fiscal situation than he
had seen in past summaries; other docunents had seened nore
generic statenments on governnment spending. He stressed that
Standard and Poor had done considerable research before
crafting the docunent.

10: 31: 55 AM

Vi ce-Chair M cciche announced that he did not disagree with
the report. He queried whether the agency would continue to
downgrade the state if the legislature nade substantive
i nprovenents during the current |egislative session.

Conmi ssioner Hoffbeck felt if the state did not neke

substantial changes its rating would continue to fall. He
reiterated that he had been working under the understanding

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



that the agency would not downgrade the state until after
the current l|egislative session. He felt that the biggest
issue was whether the state would be wlling to use
earnings frominvestnments as part of the fiscal solution

10: 33: 38 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche queried Standard and Poor's definition
of "substantive."

10: 33: 55 AM

Senator Hof fman thought that an AA plus rating was not so
terrible, when conpared to the rest of the country.

Conmi ssi oner Hoffbeck agreed. He added that the bigger
concern was that the state had a negative fiscal outl ook
into the future.

10: 35: 07 AM

Comm ssi oner Hof f beck coul d not of fer a positive
conclusion, and acknowl edged that the |legislature had
difficult decisions to nake going forward.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that the cormmittee was acting with
the best interests of Al askans and would not allow policy
to be set by bond raters "sonewhere far away". He
reiterated that the legislature deternines the fisca
policy of Al aska.

10: 36: 37 AM
AT EASE

10: 36: 59 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Kelly discussed housekeepi ng.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 37: 46 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:37 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 01/ 25/ 16 9:09 A M



